
Licensing, Health and Safety and 
General Purposes Committee
Date: Wednesday, 13 November 2019
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Anne Beauchamp
Tel: 0151 691 8608
e-mail: annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 
pecuniary and non pecuniary interests, in connection with any 
application on the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 18 
September 2019.

3. MINUTES OF THE LICENSING PANEL (Pages 5 - 46)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the Licensing Panels held 
on 11 April, 26 April, 6 June, 21 June, 27 June, 19 July, 23 August, 13 
September and 18 October 2019.

4. REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES (Pages 47 - 58)

5. REAR LOADING WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE VEHICLES (Pages 
59 - 96)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND GENERAL 
PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 18 September 2019

Present:
Councillors M Collins

C Cooke
A Corkhill
A Hodson
I Lewis

T Norbury
L Rowlands
J Stapleton
KJ Williams
G Wood

Deputy: Councillor J Bird (In place of P Stuart)

Apologies: Councillors G Davies
W J Davies
D Mitchell

Councillor A Hodson in the Chair

7 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

Councillor T Norbury declared a personal interest in respect of item 11 – Review of 
Hackney Carriage Fares by virtue of him being a Branch Secretary of Unite the 
Union.

Councillor J Bird declared a personal interest in respect of item 11 – Review of 
Hackney Carriage Fares by virtue of being a Member of Unite the Union.

8 MINUTES 

Resolved – That the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 22 May 
2019 be approved.

9 CHANGE OF MEMBERSHIP OF THE LICENSING PANEL 

Members of the Committee were invited to replace the third Conservative Member of 
the Licensing Panel.

On a motion by Councillor I Lewis and seconded by Councillor L Rowlands it 
was – 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Resolved – That Councillor M Collins be appointed as the third Conservative 
Member of the Licensing Panel.

10 REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND PLACES 2019 

The Director of Governance and Assurance (Monitoring Officer) provided a report 
advising Members of the arrangements for the statutory polling district and polling 
place review that was currently being undertaken within the Borough.  

The Electoral Services Manager reported that the review commenced on 19 August 
2019 and would conclude on 18 October 2019.  The details of the review were 
outlined within the report and Members were informed that the Electoral 
Administration Act 2013 states that the reviews must be carried out every five years.  
The proposed changes would be presented for approval to the Licensing, Health and 
Safety and General Purposes Committee meeting on 20 November 2019.  Members 
were advised that this would enable any proposed changes to the Electoral Register 
to be made and effective upon its publication on 1 December 2019.

Resolved – That the report be noted and any changes to the current 
arrangements be presented for approval at the next Licensing, Health and 
Safety and General Purposes Committee scheduled to be held on 20 November 
2019.

11 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 

Councillor T Norbury declared a personal interest in this matter by 
virtue of him being Branch Secretary of Unite the Union (minute 7 
refers).

Councillor J Bird declared a personal interest in this matter by virtue 
of being a Member of Unite the Union (minute 7 refers).

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon a proposal submitted by 
Unite Hackney Carriage trade representatives to increase the Hackney Carriage 
Tariffs.

The Licensing Manager advised that the last increase of hackney carriage fares was 
in November 2018 and that the proposal submitted was to increase the tariffs with 
effect from 1 November 2019 by an average of 3.6%.  It was noted that due to the 
way the fares are calculated, the increase at all distances will not necessarily be 
equal to 3.6%.  Members had been provided with a comparison table outlining the 
current and proposed rates, a table showing the effect of the proposed increases and 
also a table comparing the current and proposed tariffs with neighbouring local 
authorities.  

The Licensing Manager referred to a letter and a petition signed by 51 Hackney 
Carriage Drivers which had also been submitted and advised that the author of the 
letter accompanying the petition was unable to attend the meeting however had 
requested that Members note the opposition to the proposal as it would not be 
detrimental to the Hackney Carriage trade.

Page 2



Mr D Cummins, Unite the Union attended the meeting and made representations.  
He referred to a decision made by the Committee on 24 September 2007 to consider 
an annual review of fares based upon the Public Carriage Office (PCO) 
recommendations for London.  He requested that the Committee apply the PCO 
formula which he believed would result in a 3.6% increase.

Mr Hazlehurst, Unite the Union also attended the meeting and advised that he had 
submitted the proposal however he believed that this would result in only a small rise 
and it would not be equivalent to 3.6%.

The Licensing Manager clarified that the proposed increase had been calculated on 
the proposal outlined within an email submitted by Mr Hazlehurst.

Mr Hazlehurst addressed the Committee and advised that the content of his email did 
not reflect his proposal in respect of the increase in fares.

On a motion by Councillor I Lewis and seconded by Councillor M Collins it was 
– 

Resolved – That officers seek further clarification in respect of the proposal to 
amend the Hackney Carriage fare tariff and that a further report be brought 
back to the next meeting of this Committee.

12 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATIONS 

The Director of Governance and Assurance submitted a report requesting Members 
to consider introducing a limit on the number of times an individual may undertake 
the Knowledge Test during their application for a Private Hire or Hackney Carriage 
Driver Licence and to introduce a requirement that an individual must re-sit the 
complete test should they fail to pass any one module.  Members were also 
requested to consider setting a time limit of six months for an applicant to complete 
all the necessary requirements to be considered for the grant of a Private Hire or 
Hackney Carriage Driver Licence.

The Licensing Manager advised that there had been cost implications and an impact 
on staffing resources on occasions when applicants had taken the test on a number 
of occasions and also believed that applicants would be better prepared and more 
focussed should the limit be introduced.

In response to questions from Members, the Licensing Manager provided details in 
respect of the test and advised that all the requirements could be completed within a 
six month period.

On a motion by Councillor M Collins and seconded by Councillor L Rowlands it 
was – 

Resolved – That with effect from 1 October 2019, the Committee agree the 
following policy be applied to the application procedure for the granting of a 
Private Hire or Hackney Carriage Driver Licence:

1. An individual who fails to pass any module or modules of the 
Knowledge Test must retake the complete Knowledge Test.  This re-sit 

Page 3



of the test must take place within three months of taking the test for the 
first time.  An individual who fails to pass the test on the second attempt 
be prohibited from taking the test for a period of six months from the 
date of the second attempt.

2. A time limit of six months be imposed for an applicant to complete all 
the necessary requirements to be considered for the grant of a Hackney 
Carriage or Private Hire Driver Licence.

Page 4



LICENSING PANEL
Thursday, 11 April 2019

Present: Councillors RL Abbey
  G Wood
  A Hodson
  D Burgess-Joyce
  D Mitchell 
  G Davies

Apologies Councillor P Stuart

130 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

In the absence of the Chair, it was:

Resolved -
That Councillor Ron Abbey be appointed Chair for this meeting.

131 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non-
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No declarations were received.

132 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION, AUDI A6, REGISTRATION 
NUMBER MT15 ECJ 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to licence an Audi A6, registration number MT15 ECJ as a private hire 
vehicle outside the current criteria which states that side and rear windows must 
allow at least 70% of light to be transmitted through.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting.  Members inspected the 
vehicle and asked questions of the applicant.

Members considered the criteria for licensing Private Hire Vehicles in coming to this 
determination and took into account that the applicant was aware of the criteria 
before purchasing the vehicle.  Subsequently, the Licensing Panel were not 
persuaded to act outside of their Policy. 

Resolved – That the application to license an Audi A6, registration number 
MT15 ECJ, be refused.

133 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION, VAUXHALL INSIGNIA, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER DU09 DTK 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report to consider an 
application to re-license a Vauxhall Insignia, registration number DU09 DTK, beyond 
the normal over-age date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.

The vehicle had been licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 5 April 2018 and the 
current licence was due to expire on 25 March 2019, however it had been extended 
to the date of the meeting.

The date of first registration of the vehicle was 25 March 2009.  The vehicle had been 
examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificates 
were available for Members.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which members 
of the Panel inspected.

Resolved - That the application to re-license a Vauxhall Insignia, registration 
number DU09 DTK be granted for a further six months, subject to the 
advisories on the MOT certificate being carried out before the licence is 
renewed.

134 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION, PEUGEOT 407, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER SG09 LEF 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report to consider an 
application to re-license a Peugeot 407, registration number SG09 LEF, beyond the 
normal over-age date for a licensed Private Hire vehicle.

The vehicle had been licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 20 January 2016 and 
the current licence was due to expire on 30 April 2019.

The date of first registration of the vehicle was 30 April 2009.  The vehicle had been 
examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificates 
were available for Members.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle, which members 
of the Panel inspected.

Resolved – That the application to re-licence the Peugeot 407, registration 
number SG09 LEF be granted for a further six months, subject to the 
advisories on the MOT certificate being carried out before the licence is 
renewed.

135 HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION, MERCEDES M8, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER PJ59 AYX 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application to 
license a Mercedes M8, registration number PJ59 AYX, as a Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle.  

The current criteria that a Hackney Carriage Vehicle must comply with before being 
granted a licence is as follows:

Page 6



(i)That every vehicle must comply with the Council’s Hackney Carriage Vehicle   
Licence conditions;

(ii) That every vehicle must be purpose built and built to accommodate 
wheelchair disabled passengers;

(iii) That every vehicle must be properly tested and roadworthy to a standard 
approved by the Council’s vehicle inspectors, such testing to include the 
structural integrity;

(iv) That all vehicles licensed must be properly insured and that proof of such 
insurance be shown to the Council either upon application or before issue of 
licence;

(v) That every vehicle must be three years old or less from the date of first 
registration or sate of manufacture (whichever is the earlier).

The vehicle subject to the application had been licensed as a Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle since 25 March 2013.  The expiry date of the licence was 24 March 2019.

On 20 March 2019, the applicant telephoned the Licensing Office to make an 
appointment to transfer the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence into his name.  There 
was no record of the applicant stating he wished to renew the licence.  An 
appointment was made for 1 April 2019 for a vehicle transfer.  As the licence had 
expired, officers were unable to transfer it or renew it.  The applicant was advised 
that he must apply for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence.  As the 
vehicle did not comply with the criteria for granting a Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Licence, in that the vehicle was more than three years old, a licence could not be 
granted under delegated authority.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle and was 
accompanied by a representative.  Members of the Panel inspected the vehicle.  
Members questioned the applicant and his representative.  

Resolved - That the application to license a Mercedes M8 as a Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle be granted for 12 months, subject to the advisories on the 
MOT certificate being carried out before the licence is issued.

136 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 

Resolved – That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 
12A (as amended) to that Act.

137 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (GRA) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr GRA for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

Mr GRA attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his 
application.

Page 7



Members gave due consideration to the representations made by Mr GRA regarding 
the circumstances and nature of his conviction as well as other material information 
relevant to his application.  

Members had regard to their Policy, however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its individual 
merits and on this occasion Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy. 

Resolved – That Mr GRA’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.

138 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (JKD) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr JKD should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
JKD attended the meeting and made representations to the Licensing Panel as to 
why he should be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence. 

Members gave due consideration to Mr JKD’s representations and exercised their 
right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of representations made. 

Resolved – That: 

(1) Mr JKD be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

(2) Mr JKD be issued with a written warning from Members of the Licensing 
Panel as to his future conduct.

139 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE (SGR) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr SGR should continue to hold a Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licence.  Mr SGR attended the meeting and made representations in respect of why 
he should be allowed to continue to hold a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence

Members considered the representations made by Mr SGR regarding his convictions.

Members gave due consideration to Mr SGR’s representations and exercised their 
right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.  

Resolved – That: 

(1) That Mr SGR be allowed to continue to hold a Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licence.

(2) That Mr SGR be issued with a written warning from Members of the 
Panel as to his future conduct.  

Page 8



140 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (DFK) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr DFK should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
DFK attended the meeting, accompanied by his solicitor, and made representations 
in respect of whether he should be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 
Licence.

Members questioned Mr DFK and gave due consideration to his representations. 

Resolved - That Mr DFK be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 
Licence.  

141 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (JDP) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr JDP for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr JDP did not attend the meeting.

Resolved - That Mr JDP be advised to attend a future meeting of the Licensing 
Panel should he wish to continue with his application.   

142 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (JJQ) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr JJQ should be granted a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr JJQ 
attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr JJQ regarding his convictions.

Members gave due consideration to Mr JJQ’s representations.  

Resolved - That Mr JJQ’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.

143 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (MAO) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr MAO should be granted a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr MAO 
attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr MAO regarding his 
convictions.  

Members gave due consideration to Mr MAO’s representations and exercised their 
right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.  

Resolved - That Mr MAO’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.  

Page 9



144 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (JPG) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr JPG should be granted a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr JPG 
attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr JPG regarding his convictions.

Members gave due consideration to Mr JPG’s representations.

Resolved - That Mr JPG’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.  

145 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE (SJB) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr SJB should be granted a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr SJB 
attended the meeting, accompanied by a friend, and made representations in respect 
of his application.

Members were asked to adjourn the matter, to obtain further information.  During the 
adjournment, Mr SJB left the building.  Consequently, Members were unable to deal 
with the application.  

Resolved - That Mr SJB be advised to attend a future meeting of the Licensing 
Panel should he wish to continue with his application.  

146 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (CJP) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr CJP should be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 
Licence.  Mr CJP attended the meeting, accompanied by his representative and 
made representations.

Members gave due consideration to Mr CJP’s representations and those made by his 
representative, on his behalf.

Resolved – That:

(1) Mr CJP be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

(2) Mr CJP be issued with a written warning from the Licensing Panel 
regarding his behaviour.

(3) Mr CJP must complete an anger management course and provide 
evidence to the Licensing Authority that the course was completed.  
Should Mr CJP fail to provide evidence to the Licensing Authority that 
he has completed an anger management course by 31 May 2019, he 
must be referred back to the Licensing Panel for further consideration.

Page 10



LICENSING PANEL
Friday, 26 April 2019

Present:
Councillors G Wood

D Burgess-Joyce
Deputies Councillor J Stapleton (for Councillor R Abbey)

146 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Resolved – That:

In the absence of the Chair, Councillor Burgess-Joyce be appointed Chair for 
this meeting.

147 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.  

148 APPLICATION TO LICENSE A CUSTOM A CAB AS A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to license a Ford Tourneo Custom A Cab rear loading wheelchair 
accessible vehicle as a Private Hire Vehicle as a result of further information being 
presented.

Wirral Council must be satisfied that vehicles licensed as private hire vehicles are 
suitable in type, size and design for use as private hire vehicles, that it is in a suitable 
mechanical condition and is safe and comfortable.

An application to license the Ford Tourneo Custom A Cab rear loading wheelchair 
accessible vehicle as a Private Hire Vehicle was considered by the Licensing Panel 
on 9 November 2018.

Members resolved that the Ford Tourneo Custom A Cab be approved to be licensed 
as a Private Hire Vehicle, subject to each vehicle being presented for licensing with a 
satisfactory Individual Vehicle Approval Certificate.

Since the meeting of the Licensing Panel on 9 November 2018, Officers had sought 
and obtained advice from the Vehicle Certification Agency regarding the status of 
documents submitted in support of the application made at that time and the nature 
and extent of testing that takes place as part of an Individual Vehicle Approval and 
Whole Vehicle Type Approval.

Public Document Pack

Page 11



Following the findings of these enquiries, it was considered appropriate for Members 
to review the decision made on 9 November 2019.

The Panel considered representations made by Mr Marnell, who was accompanied 
by Mr Hughes, a Hackney Carriage Driver and considered their decision in the light 
of these representations.

Resolved – 

(1) That having regard to the representations made by Mr Marnell and the 
information contained in the documentation provided by Officers, the 
decision of the Licensing Panel, made on 9 November 2018 be set aside.

(2) That Officers be directed to present a report to the Licensing, Health 
and Safety Committee, in respect of a policy regarding the licensing of 
used vehicles that have been converted or adapted to carry wheelchair-
using passengers.

149 APPLICATION TO LICENSE A CUSTOM A CABBI AS A HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
VEHICLE 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application for 
Members to review the decision of the Licensing Panel on 9 November 2018 to 
license the Ford Tourneo Custom A Cabbi rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicle 
as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle as a result of further information being presented.

The criteria for licensing vehicles as Hackney Carriage Vehicles stated that:

 All vehicles must be purpose built and built to accommodate disabled 
passengers in wheelchairs in the rear passenger compartment.

 All vehicles must comply in all aspects with the requirements of the Motor 
Vehicle (Type Approval) Regulations 1980 and the Motor Vehicle (Type 
Approval) Regulations (Great Britain) 1984.  Every new vehicle offered for 
approval must comply in all respects with the British and European vehicle 
regulations and be M1 type approved in accordance with European Whole 
Type Approval 70/156/EEC as amended.  Those vehicles which do not hold 
M1 type approval must be presented with approved certification that the 
specific vehicle meets the requirements of M1 category.

 All vehicles must have separate driver and rear passenger compartments, 
separated by a transparent partition in accordance with the manufacturer or 
vehicle converter’s original specification.

 Vehicles presented for approval must comply with the Road Vehicles 
(Construction and Use) Regulations 1986 and any subsequent amendment or 
re-enactment thereof.

An application to license the Ford Tourneo Custom A Cabbi rear loading wheelchair 
accessible vehicle as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle was considered by the Licensing 
panel on 9 November 2018.

Page 12



Members resolved that the Ford Tourneo Custom A Cabbi be approved to be 
licensed as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle, subject to each vehicle being presented for 
licensing with a satisfactory Individual Vehicle Approval Certificate.

Since the meeting of the Licensing Panel on 9 November 2018, Officers had sought 
and obtained advice from the Vehicle Certification Agency regarding the status of 
documents submitted in support of the application made at that time and the nature 
and extent of testing that takes place as part of an Individual Vehicle Approval and 
Whole Vehicle Type Approval.

Following the findings of these enquiries it was considered appropriate for Members 
to review the decision made on 9 November 2018.  

Resolved –

(1) That having regard to the representations made by Mr Marnell and the 
information contained in the documentation provided by Officers, the 
decision of the Licensing Panel, made on 9 November 2018 be set aside.

(2) That Officers be directed to present a report to the Licensing, Health 
and Safety Committee, in respect of a policy regarding the licensing of 
rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles.

150 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE (SJB) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report for Members 
to consider whether to grant a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence to Mr SJB.

Mr SJB attended the meeting, made representations regarding his application and 
answered questions from members of the Panel.

The Panel considered the representations made by Mr SJB.

Resolved – That Mr SJB’s application for the grant of a Hackney Carriage 
Driver Licence be refused.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



LICENSING PANEL
Thursday, 6 June 2019

Present: Councillor P Stuart (Chair)

Councillors G Wood
A Hodson
D Burgess-Joyce

D Mitchell
L Rowlands

1 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

2 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - FORD MONDEO, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER YC09 JBE 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to re-licence a Ford Mondeo, registration number YC09 JBE, beyond the 
normal over-age date for a licensed private hire vehicle. 

The vehicle had been licensed as a private hire vehicle since 7 March 2016 and the 
current licence was due to expire on 5 May 2019, however it had been extended to 
the date of this meeting. The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations and the pass certificate was available for Members. 

The owner of the vehicle did not attend the meeting.

Resolved – That the applicant attend a future meeting of the Panel should he 
wish to pursue his application.

3 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to that Act.

4 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SK) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr SK for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

Mr SK attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Public Document Pack

Page 15



Members considered the representations made by Mr SK regarding the 
circumstances of his caution as well as other material information relevant to his 
application.

Members did not consider Mr SK to be a fit and proper person to be a Private Hire 
Driver due to the nature of the caution recorded against him and his failure to 
disclose this on his application form.

In determining the matter Members also gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  The 
Panel applied the principle of proportionality enshrined within the Human Rights Act 
1998. Members were not persuaded to act outside of their Policy on this occasion.

Resolved (5:1) - That Mr SK’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused.

5 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (FA) 

The Corporate Director for Business reported upon an application received by Mr FA 
for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

Mr FA attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application. 

Members considered the representations made by Mr FA. Members gave due 
consideration to the representations made and exercised their rights to consider each 
case on its individual merits in light of representations made. 

Resolved - That Mr FA’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved subject to him satisfying the test specified by the 
Licensing Panel.

6 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SB) 

The Corporate Director for Business reported upon an application received by Mr SB 
for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

Mr SB attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr SB. Members gave due 
consideration to the representations made and exercised their rights to consider each 
case on its individual merits in light of representations made.

Resolved - That Mr SB’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.

7 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (MAJ) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr MAJ for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

Mr MAJ attended the meeting together with Mr MB, who was present to support Mr 
MAJ and made representations in respect of his application.

Page 16



Members considered the representations made by Mr MAJ regarding the 
circumstances of his convictions as well as other material information relevant to his 
application.

Members did not consider Mr MAJ to be a fit and proper person to be a Private Hire 
Driver due to the number and nature of the convictions recorded against him and his 
failure to declare offences when licensed as a Private Hire Driver.

In determining the matter Members also gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  The 
Panel applied the principle of proportionality enshrined within the Human Rights Act 
1998. Members were not persuaded to act outside of their Policy on this occasion.

Resolved (5:1) - That Mr MAJ’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused.

8 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (CJP) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report to consider 
whether Mr CJP should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr CJP did not attend the meeting. 

Resolved – That Mr CJP be instructed to attend a future meeting of the 
Licensing Panel.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



LICENSING PANEL
Friday, 21 June 2019

Present: Councillor P Stuart (Chair)

Apologies:

Councillors

Councillors

G Wood
A Hodson

D Burgess-Joyce
G Davies
W J Davies
J Stapleton

L Rowlands
D Mitchell

9 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

10 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - FORD MONDEO, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER YC09 JBE 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to re-licence a Ford Mondeo, registration number YC09 JBE, beyond the 
normal over-age date for a licensed private hire vehicle.  The current licence was due 
to expire on 5 May 2019 but had been extended to the date of this meeting.  The 
vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and 
the pass certificate was available for Members.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which members 
of the Panel inspected.  

Resolved – That the application to re-licence the Ford Mondeo, registration 
number YC09 JBE be granted for a further six months.

11 HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION, FORD TOURNEO 
CUSTOM A-CABBI 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report requesting 
Members consider an application to approve the Ford Tourneo Custom A-Cabbi rear 
loading wheelchair accessible vehicle to be licensed as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle.

The applicant attended the meeting together with an independent homologation 
engineer.  The applicant also presented examples of the type of vehicles proposed to 
be licensed which were viewed by Members of the Licensing Panel.  The applicant 
and the independent homologation engineer made representations in respect of the 
application.

Public Document Pack

Page 19



Members were provided with comments from the Council’s Interim Traffic Network 
Engineer in respect of the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles on 
hackney carriage ranks and the safety implications of loading a passenger from the 
road into such vehicles.

A report was presented by the applicant which he advised Members related to the 
safety of the vehicle.  This report had not previously been provided to the Licensing 
Authority.

Members considered that further time was needed to read the report presented 
which required that the meeting be adjourned.

Further to consideration of the information provided by the Council’s Interim Traffic 
Manager Members considered that it would be appropriate to undertake a 
consultation exercise in respect of the use of rear loading vehicles being licensed as 
Private Hire Vehicles and Hackney Carriage Vehicles.

Resolved – 

(1) That this matter be adjourned.

(2) That officers undertake a consultation exercise in respect of the use of 
rear loading vehicles being licensed as Private Hire Vehicles and Hackney 
Carriage Vehicles. 

12 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - FORD TOURNEO CUSTOM 
A-CAB 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report requesting 
Members to consider an application to approve the Ford Tourneo Custom A-Cab rear 
loading wheelchair accessible vehicle to be licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle.

Resolved – 

(1) That this matter be adjourned.

(2) That officers undertake a consultation exercise in respect of the use of 
rear loading vehicles being licensed as Private Hire Vehicles and Hackney 
Carriage Vehicles. 

13 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined by paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) 
to that Act.  The Public Interest Test had been applied and favoured exclusion.

14 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (CJP) 

Page 20



The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report requesting the 
Panel to consider whether to renew Mr CJP’s Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr CJP attended the meeting and made representations.

Members considered the representations made by Mr CJP regarding the 
circumstances of his convictions as well as other material information relevant to the 
renewal of his Private Hire Driver Licence in respect of his conduct.

Resolved - 

(1) That Mr CJP’s Private Hire Driver Licence be renewed until 30 August 
2019.

(2) That Mr CJP provide a medical report from his consultant to the 
Licensing Officer.

(3) That Mr CJP successfully complete an anger management course by 30 
August 2019.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



LICENSING PANEL
Thursday, 27 June 2019

Present: Councillor P Stuart (Chair)
D Burgess-Joyce
L Rowlands

Apologies Councillors G Wood
J Stapleton
G Davies
A Hodson
B Davies

15 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

16 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - LTI TXII, REGISTRATION 
NUMBER Y749 CGJ 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to license an LTI TXII, registration number Y749 CGJ, as a Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle.  

On 22 May 2013, Members of the Licensing, Health and Safety and General 
Purposes Committee reported that:

In circumstances when a Hackney Carriage Vehicle proprietor wishes to change a 
Hackney Carriage Vehicle that is currently licensed to a different vehicle, the 
replacement vehicle must be the same age or less than the vehicle that is currently 
licensed up to a maximum of ten years old.  Vehicles that are ten years old or more 
must be replaced by a vehicle that is no more than ten years old and that this Policy 
is to have immediate effect.

The applicant wished to change the vehicle that was currently licensed as a Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle, registration number M587 MYE, which was 24 years old, to the 
vehicle registration number Y749 CGJ, which was 18 years old.

The current vehicle was licensed until 30 November 2019.  The vehicle had been 
examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificate 
was available at the meeting.

The applicant attended the meeting, accompanied by a representative.

Public Document Pack

Page 23



Members considered the representations made by the applicant and the exceptional 
condition of the vehicle.  Members exercised their right to consider each case on its 
individual merits.

Resolved – That the application to license the LTI TXII, registration number 
Y749 CGJ, be granted for six months.

17 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE, BMW 730D, REGISTRATION NUMBER MA55 
SSH 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application to 
renew a Private Hire Vehicle Licence for a BMW 730D, registration number MA55 
SSH, and to amend the conditions to permit the vehicle to be exempt from displaying 
Private Hire Vehicle Licence plates and to exempt the driver of the vehicle from 
wearing his Private Hire Driver Badge.  

On 18 July 2018 the Licensing, Health and Safety and General Purposes Committee 
resolved that the procedure for licensing non-standard Private Hire vehicles be 
amended.  This amendment was to replace the Special Event Private Hire Vehicle 
Licence conditions with the standard Private Hire Vehicle criteria and conditions and 
that any vehicle seeking to operate outside of these conditions and criteria be 
referred to the Licensing Panel so that each case could be considered on its own 
individual merits. 

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting.  He advised Members that he 
had made the application due to the type of work he undertakes, which was luxury 
chauffeur transfers for corporate clients only, who would particularly require privacy.

Members questioned the applicant regarding his business plan and any conditions 
they may implement.

Resolved – That:

(1) The proprietor of the BMW 730D, registration number MA55 SSH be 
provided with a notice providing an exemption to the requirement to 
display Private Hire Vehicle Licence plates on the vehicle and to exempt 
the driver from the requirement to wear a Private Hire Driver Badge.

(2) The vehicle may only be used as a Private Hire Vehicle in circumstances 
where: 

 The booking has been made 24 hours in advance of the   journey
 The payment for the journey has been requested through an 

invoicing system or made by credit/debit card
 The following information is communicated to the customer in 

advance of the journey by email or text message: 
Name of the Private Hire Driver
Photograph of the Private Hire Driver
Badge Number of the Private Hire Driver
Registration Number of the Vehicle

Page 24



(3) The vehicle may only undertake work that is paid for through an 
invoicing system.

18 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE (SGR) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to license a Mercedes Vito 114 Tourer, as a Private Hire Vehicle outside the 
current criteria which states that side and rear windows must allow at least 70% of 
light to be transmitted through and to permit two passengers to be carried in the front.  
Members were also asked to consider allowing the vehicle to be exempt from 
displaying Private Hire Vehicle Licence plates and the drivers of the vehicle to be 
exempt from wearing a Private Hire Driver Badge.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle which Members 
of the Panel inspected.

Members considered the representations made by the applicant.

Resolved – That:

(1) The applicant be permitted to license a Mercedes Vito 114 Tourer as a 
Private Hire Vehicle outside the current criteria which states that side 
and rear windows must allow at least 70% of light to be transmitted 
through.

(2) The vehicle licence contains the following condition: only one 
passenger may be carried in the front of the vehicle.

(3) The proprietor of the vehicle be issued with a notice providing an 
exemption from the requirement to display Private Hire Vehicle Licence 
plates on the vehicle and to exempt the driver of the vehicle from the 
requirement to wear a Private Hire Driver Badge when driving the 
vehicle.

(4) The vehicle may only be used as a Private Hire Vehicle in circumstances 
where: 

 The booking has been made 24 hours in advance of the   journey
 The payment for the journey has been requested through an 

invoicing system or made by credit/debit card
 The following information is communicated to the customer in 

advance of the journey by email or text message: 
Name of the Private Hire Driver
Photograph of the Private Hire Driver
Badge Number of the Private Hire Driver
Registration Number of the Vehicle

Page 25



(5) The vehicle may only undertake work that is paid for through an 
invoicing system.

19 ANY OTHER BUSINESS - PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report to consider an 
application to re-license a Volkswagen Touran, registration number DA09 PFO, 
beyond the normal over-age date for a licensed private hire vehicle.  The vehicle had 
been previously licensed as a private hire vehicle since 12 October 2018 and the 
current licence was due to expire on 26 June 2019, however it had been extended to 
the date of the meeting.

A representative of the owner of the vehicle was present with the vehicle which 
Members of the Panel inspected.

In determining the application, Members had regard to the poor condition of the 
vehicle, as well as their Policy relating to the licensing of Private Hire Vehicles. 

Resolved – That the application to re-license the Volkswagen Touran, 
registration number DA09 PFO, beyond the normal over-age date for a licensed 
private hire vehicle be refused.  

20 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 
12A (as amended) to that Act.

21 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SJM) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr SJM for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr SJM attended the meeting, made representations in respect of his application and 
answered questions from Members.

Members considered the representations made by Mr SJM regarding the 
circumstances of his convictions as well as other material information relevant to his 
application.  

Resolved – That Mr SJM’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved. 

22 PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATIONS 
(DPA) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to grant a Private Hire and a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence to Mr DPA.

Page 26



The applicant did not attend the meeting.

Resolved – That the applicant be invited to attend a future meeting of the 
Licensing Panel, should he wish to pursue his application.  

23 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATION (TA) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr TA for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr TA attended 
the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.  

Members had regard to their policy however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its individual 
merits and on this occasion, Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy 
in determining this application. 

Resolved – (2:1) (Councillor P Stuart dissenting) That Mr TA’s application for 
the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence be approved. 

24 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (AFF) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application from 
Mr AFF for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  

Mr AFF attended the meeting, made representations in respect of his application and 
answered questions from Members.

Members had regard to their policy however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its individual 
merits and on this occasion, Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy 
in determining this application. 

Resolved – That Mr AFF’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved. 

25 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE 
(JJH) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr JJH for the grant of a Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licence.

Mr JJH attended the meeting, made representations and answered questions in 
respect of his application.

Members had regard to their policy, however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its individual 

Page 27



merits and on this occasion, Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy 
in determining this application. 

Resolved – That Mr JJH’s applications for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence and Hackney Carriage Driver Licence be approved. 

26 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (CJE) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report into whether 
Mr CJE should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr CJE did not attend the meeting.

Resolved – That Mr CJE be advised to attend a future meeting of the Licensing 
Panel should he wish to continue with his application.  

27 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (MMR) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr MMR for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr MMR attended the meeting, made representations and answered questions from 
Members in respect of his application.

Members had regard to their policy, however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its individual 
merits and on this occasion, Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy 
in determining this application. 

Resolved – (2:1) (Councillor P Stuart dissenting)
That Mr MMR’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence be 
approved

28 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATION (LKH) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr LKH for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence.

Mr LKH did not attend the meeting 

Resolved – That Mr LKH be advised to attend a future meeting of the Licensing 
Panel, should he wish to continue with his application.  

29 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (MMU) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report to consider an 
application received from Mr MMU for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
MMU attended the meeting, accompanied by his father-in-law, and made 
representations in respect of his application.  

Members considered the representations made by Mr MMU regarding the 
circumstances of his convictions as well as other material information relevant to his 

Page 28



application.  Members had regard to their Policy and on this occasion were not 
persuaded to act outside their Policy.

In determining the matter Members also gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  

Resolved – That Mr MMU’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



LICENSING PANEL
Friday, 19 July 2019

Present: Councillors A Hodson
  D Mitchell
L Rowlands

Deputy Councillor K Greaney (for G Wood)

Apologies: Councillors   P Stuart (Chair)
  D Burgess-Joyce
  T Norbury
  J Stapleton

32 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

In the absence of the Chair, it was:

Resolved – That Councillor A Hodson be appointed Chair for this meeting.

33 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non-
pecuniary interests, in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

34 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 
12A (as amended) to that Act.

35 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (AX) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report to consider an 
application received from Mr AX for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr AX 
attended the meeting, represented by his representatives, and made representations 
in respect of his application.  

Members questioned Mr AX in respect of his application. 

Members gave due consideration to the representations made by Mr AX and 
exercised their right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made.

Public Document Pack

Page 31



Resolved – That Mr AX’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be granted. 

36 PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCES (SS) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report to consider 
whether Mr SS should continue to hold a Private Hire and a Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licence.

Mr SS attended the meeting and made representations regarding his convictions.

Members considered Mr SS’ representations and exercised their right to consider 
each case on its individual merits in light of the representations made.  

Resolved: That:

(1) Mr SS be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire and a Hackney 
Carriage Driver Licence.

(2) Mr SS must undertake a Driver Awareness Course no later than 16 
August 2019.

(3) Mr SS be issued with a written warning from Members of the Licensing 
Panel as to his future conduct.

(4) Mr SS be referred back to the Licensing Panel, should he not undertake 
the Driver Awareness Course within the time limit.

37 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (CJE) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management introduced a report to consider 
whether Mr CJE should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr CJE attended the meeting, made representations regarding his convictions and 
answered questions from Members.  

Members gave due consideration to Mr CJE’s representations and exercised their 
right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made. 

Resolved:  That:

(1) Mr CJE be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

(2) Mr CJE be issued with a written warning from Members of the Licensing 
Panel as to his future conduct.

(3) Mr CJE must undertake a Driver Awareness Course no later than 16 
August 2019.

(4) Mr CJE be referred back to the Licensing Panel, should he not 
undertake the Driver Awareness Course within the time limit. 

Page 32



38 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SDEJNJ) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr SdeJNJ for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.

Mr SdeJNJ did not attend the meeting.

Resolved – That Mr SdeJNJ be advised to attend a future meeting of the 
Licensing Panel should he wish to continue with his application.

39 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (MSU) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider an application received from Mr MSU for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence.  Mr MSU attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his 
application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr MSU regarding the 
circumstances and nature of his convictions as well as other material information 
relevant to his application.  Members had regard to their Policy, and on this occasion 
were not persuaded to act outside their Policy. 

In determining the matter Members also gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  

Resolved – That Mr MSU’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused.

40 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (COJ) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report to consider an 
application received from Mr COJ for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
COJ attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr COJ regarding the 
circumstances and nature of his convictions as well as other material information 
relevant to his application.  

Members had regard to their Policy, however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its own merits 
and on this occasion, Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy in 
determining this application. 

Resolved – That Mr COJ’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved. 

At this point, Councillor Greaney left the meeting.

41 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATION (LH) 

Page 33



The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr LH for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence.  

Mr LH attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.   

Members considered the representations made by Mr LH regarding the 
circumstances and nature of his convictions as well as other material information 
relevant to his application.  

Members had regard to their Policy, however, after careful consideration of the 
representations made, exercised their right to consider each case on its own merits 
and on this occasion, Members were persuaded to act outside of their Policy in 
determining this application. 

Resolved – That Mr LH’s application for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licence be approved. 

Page 34



LICENSING PANEL
Friday, 23 August 2019

Present: Councillor P Stuart (Chair)

Councillors L Rowlands
D Mitchell

Deputies Councillors K Greaney (for Councillor G Wood)

Apologies: Councillors   B Davies
  A Hodson

    T Norbury
    J Stapleton

41 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non-
pecuniary interests, in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were received.  

42 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION, TOYOTA PRIUS, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER SD58 CPN 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received to re-license a Toyota Prius, registration number SD58 CPN, beyond the 
normal over-age date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.  The date of first 
registration of the vehicle was 30 September 2008.  It had been licensed as a Private 
Hire Vehicle since 21 August 2013 and the current licence was due to expire on 20 
August 2019 but had been extended to the date of this meeting.  The vehicle had 
been examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass 
certificate was available for Members.  

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which Members 
of the Panel inspected.

Resolved – That the application to re-license a Toyota Prius, registration 
number SD58 CPN, as a Private Hire Vehicle be approved for six months, 
subject to the registration plates on the vehicle being replaced and the vehicle 
being issued with a new front plate as well as a new rear plate on the issue of 
the licence. 

43 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 

Public Document Pack

Page 35



exempt information as defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 
12A (as amended) to that Act.
The Public Interest test had been applied and favoured exclusion.

44 PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCES (MRI) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr MRI should continue to hold Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Driver Licences.  Mr MRI attended the meeting, accompanied by his wife and 
solicitor, and made representations in respect of his application. 

Members considered the representations made by Mr MRI in respect of the report.  
Mr MRI answered questions from Members of the Panel.  

Members gave due consideration to Mr MRI’s representations and exercised their 
right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.

Resolved – That: 
(1) Mr MRI be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire and Hackney 

Carriage Driver Licence; 
(2) A written warning be issued to Mr MRI;
(3) Mr MRI must obtain an NVQ Level 2 in Taxi Driving;
(4) Mr MRI must register for the course with a training provider no later 

than 6 September 2019;
(5) Mr MRI must notify the Licensing Officer of the name of the training 

provider before commencing the course;
(6) Should Mr MRI fail to obtain the NVQ he must be referred to the 

Licensing Panel. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

45 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (DLB) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr DLB for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr DLB attended 
the meeting, answered questions from councillors and officers and made 
representations in respect of his application.  

Members considered the representations made by Mr DLB as well as other material 
information relevant to his application.  Members had regard to their Policy and on 
this occasion were not persuaded to act outside their Policy.  

Resolved – That Mr DLB’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused. 

46 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (JMS) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr JMS for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr JMS 
attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.  

Page 36



Members gave due consideration to the representations made by Mr JMS and 
exercised their right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made.

Resolved – That Mr JMS’ application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved. 

At this point, Councillor Greaney left the meeting. 

47 PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATION 
(MAH) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr MAH for the grant of Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licences.  Mr MAH attended the meeting, made representations and answered 
questions in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr MAH in respect of his 
application and exercised their right to consider each case on its individual merits in 
light of the representations made.   

Resolved – That Mr MAH’s applications for the grant of a Private Hire and a 
Hackney Carriage Driver Licence be approved. 

48 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE APPLICATION (LH) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received by Mr LH for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence.  Mr LH 
attended the meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members gave due consideration to the representations made by Mr LH and 
exercised their right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made. 

Resolved – That Mr LH’s application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence be 
approved. 

49 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SDEJNJ) 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application 
received from Mr SdeJNJ for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr SdeJNJ 
attended the meeting, accompanied by his daughter and a friend.

Members gave due consideration to the representations made by Mr SdeJNJ and 
exercised their right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made.

Resolved – That Mr SdeJNJ’s application for a Private Hire Driver Licence be 
approved. 

50 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (AFP) 

Page 37



The Corporate Director for Business Management submitted a report to consider an 
application received from Mr AFP for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
AFP attended the meeting, made representations in respect of his application and 
answered questions from Members of the Panel.

Members considered the representations made by Mr AFP in respect of his 
application.  

Members gave due consideration to Mr AFP’s representations and exercised their 
right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.

Resolved – That Mr AFP’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved. 

Page 38



LICENSING PANEL
Friday, 13 September 2019

Present:
Councillors G Wood

J Stapleton
A Hodson

L Rowlands
D Mitchell

Apologies Councillors W J Davies
T Norbury
P Stuart

51 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

In the absence of the Chair, it was – 

Resolved – That Councillor A Hodson be appointed Chair for this meeting.

52 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

53 OVERAGE VEHICLE - TOYOTA PRIUS, REGISTRATION NUMBER LT59 WNJ 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received to 
re-licence a Toyota Prius, registration number LT59 WNJ, beyond the normal over-
age date for a licensed private hire vehicle. The vehicle had been previously licensed 
as a private hire vehicle since 21 June 2019 and the current licence was due to 
expire on 10 September 2019, however it had been extended to the date of this 
meeting. The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing 
stations and the pass certificate was available for Members.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which members 
of the Panel inspected.  

Resolved – That the application to re-licence the Toyota Prius, registration 
number LT59 WNJ be granted for a further six months.

54 OVERAGE VEHICLE - VAUXHALL INSIGNIA, REGISTRATION NUMBER DU09 
DTK 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received to 
re-licence a Vauxhall Insignia, registration number DU09 DTK, beyond the normal 
over-age date for a licensed private hire vehicle. The vehicle had been previously 
licensed as a private hire vehicle since 11 October 2013 and the current licence was 
due to expire on 25 September 2019.  On expiry of a previous licence on 25 March 
2019 the Licensing Panel had granted a licence for a further six months. The vehicle 
had been examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass 
certificate was available for Members.

Public Document Pack

Page 39



The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which members 
of the Panel inspected.  

Resolved – That the application to re-licence the Vauxhall Insignia, registration 
number DU09 DTK be granted for a further six months.

55 OVERAGE VEHICLE - TOYOTA PRIUS, REGISTRATION NUMBER PE59 LUJ 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received to 
re-licence a Toyota Prius, registration number PE59 LUJ, beyond the normal over-
age date for a licensed private hire vehicle. The vehicle had been previously licensed 
as a private hire vehicle since 30 March 2016 and the current licence was due to 
expire on 16 September 2019. The vehicle had been examined at one of the 
Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificate was available for 
Members.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which members 
of the Panel inspected.  

Resolved – That it be delegated to officers to issue a licence in respect of the 
Toyota Prius, registration number PE59 LUJ further to the works specified 
being carried out to the satisfaction of the Licensing Officers.

56 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to that Act.  The Public Interest Test had been applied and favoured 
exclusion.

57 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (KD) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received by 
Mr KD for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr KD attended the meeting 
and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr KD. 

Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of representations made.

Resolved (4:1) (Councillor A Hodson dissenting) - That Mr KD’s application for 
the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence be approved.

58 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (CJP) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr CJP’s Private Hire Driver Licence should be renewed.  Mr CJP 
attended the meeting and made representations.

Page 40



Members gave due consideration to Mr CJP’s representations and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made. 

Resolved - That Mr CJP’s Private Hire Driver Licence be renewed.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



LICENSING PANEL
Friday, 18 October 2019

Present:
Councillors M Collins

T Norbury
L Rowlands

Apologies: Councillors P Stuart
A Hodson
D Mitchell
G Wood

59 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

In the absence of the Chair it was – 

Resolved – That Councillor L Rowlands be appointed Chair for this meeting.

60 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

61 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - TOYOTA PRIUS, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER YK59 ZHT 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received to 
re-licence a Toyota Prius, registration number YK59 ZHT, beyond the normal over-
age date for a licensed private hire vehicle.  The vehicle had been previously 
licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 13 June 2017 and the current licence was 
due to expire on 28 October 2019.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the 
Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificate was available for 
Members.

The owner of the vehicle was present at the meeting with his vehicle which members 
of the Panel inspected.  

Resolved – 

(1) That the application to re-licence the Toyota Prius, registration number 
YK59 ZHT be granted for a further six months.

(2) That the near-side front tyre be replaced and the vehicle be valeted prior 
to the licence being issued.

Public Document Pack

Page 43



62 APPLICATION TO APPROVE A KIA NIRO AS A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received to 
approve a Kia Niro as a Private Hire Vehicle.

Members were advised that paragraph 36 of the criteria for licensing Private Hire 
Vehicles states that:

The front windscreen must let at least 75% of light through and all other windows 
must let at least 70% of light through.

Members of the Licensing Panel were advised by the applicant that the Kia Niro is 
fitted as standard with side and rear windows which allow less than 70% of light to be 
transmitted through and does not therefore meet the Council’s criteria for licensing 
Private Hire Vehicles.  The applicant advised that replacement windows that would 
satisfy the criteria would not be available for the vehicle.

The vehicle was presented at the meeting which was inspected by Members of the 
Panel.  

Resolved – That the application to approve the Kia Niro as a Private Hire 
Vehicle be refused.

63 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to that Act.  The Public Interest Test had been applied and favoured 
exclusion.

64 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (PJC) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received by 
Mr PJC for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr PJC attended the meeting 
and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr PJC. 

Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.

Resolved - That Mr PJC’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.

65 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (ARP) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received by 
Mr ARP for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr ARP attended the meeting 
and made representations in respect of his application.

Page 44



Members considered the representations made by Mr ARP. 

Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.

Resolved - That Mr ARP’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be approved.

66 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (AMS) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr AMS should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
AMS attended the meeting and made representations.

Members gave due consideration to Mr AMS’s representations and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made. 

Resolved - 

(1) That Mr AMS be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

(2) That Mr AMS be issued with a written warning in respect of his future 
conduct and in particular regarding his duty to report matters to the 
Licensing Authority in accordance with the conditions of his Private Hire 
Driver Licence.

67 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE (MB) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance reported upon an application received by 
Mr MB for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence.  Mr MB attended the 
meeting and made representations in respect of his application.

Members considered the representations made by Mr MB. 

Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made.

Resolved - That Mr MB’s application for the grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver 
Licence be approved.

68 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SME) 

The Director of Governance and Assurance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether Mr SME should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.  Mr 
SME attended the meeting accompanied by his wife and made representations.

Page 45



Members gave due consideration to Mr SME’s representations and exercised their 
rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the representations 
made. 

Resolved - 

(1) That Mr SME be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence.

(2) That Mr SME be issued with a written warning in respect of his future 
conduct.

Page 46



1

LICENSING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

13 NOVEMBER 2019

REPORT TITLE REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE

REPORT SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider a proposal to increase the 
Hackney Carriage Tariffs. 

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

RECOMMENDATION/S
That:

1. The Committee considers the proposal to amend the Hackney Carriage Tariffs and 
determine whether to recommend to Cabinet an increase in Hackney Carriage Tariffs, 
subject to any objections being received as part of the consultation process.

2. Any future review of the Hackney Carriage Tariffs be undertaken on its merits taking 
into consideration any representations made in respect of the review.

Page 47

Agenda Item 4



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 A proposal to increase the Hackney Carriage Tariffs has been submitted by Unite 
the Union. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Hackney Carriage Tariffs remain unchanged.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 On 18 September 2019 the Committee considered a proposal submitted by a Unite 
the Union representative to increase the Hackney Carriage Tariffs.

3.2 At the meeting on 18 September 2019, representations were made by Unite the 
Union which resulted in the Committee requesting further clarity in respect of the 
proposal that they were being asked to consider. 

3.3 During the meeting the Committee was advised by one of the Unite representatives 
that on 24 September 2007 this Committee had approved annual tariff reviews 
based upon the Public Carriage Office (PCO) (now Transport for London (TfL)) 
recommendation, and made reference to what they considered to be the current TfL 
recommendation which they described as an increase of fares of between 3.6% and 
3.9%.  The Committee subsequently requested officers advise further on the matter 
raised, the details as requested are provided in paragraphs 3.6 to 3.11 of this 
report. 

3.4 The Committee is advised that on 24 September 2007 this Committee agreed to an 
annual review of fares based upon the Public Carriage Office recommendations.

3.5 In September 2008 and November 2009 this Committee approved tariff increases 
proposed by Hackney Carriage trade representatives based upon the PCO 
recommendation for London.  In November 2010 and September 2012 Hackney 
Carriage trade representatives proposed that the PCO recommendations were not 
adopted.  Subsequent tariff increase proposals made in 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 
have not been based on the PCO/TfL recommendations.

3.6 TfL review Hackney Carriage Tariffs annually based upon a Total Cost Index figure.  
This figure is calculated based on vehicle costs, parts, servicing, insurance, 
increase in average earnings and other factors relating to the trade in London, for 
example licence fees. 

3.7 The TfL Total Cost Index figure for 2019 is +3.4%, however TfL did not propose an 
increase based on this figure because of:

 Concerns about some tariff rates already being too high; 
 Concerns about other tariff rates becoming too high; 

Page 48



3

 A potential adverse impact on people who rely on or use taxis often, 
including disabled and elderly taxi users and 

 A potential adverse impact on taxi drivers if fares increase by 3.4 per cent if 
this leads to fewer people using taxis and drivers’ incomes falling.

3.8 TfL put forward a proposal for consultation in July 2019 which was:

 Increasing the minimum fare by 20 pence (6.7 per cent) taking this from 
£3.00 to £3.20 

 Increasing Tariff 1 by 1.9 per cent 
 Increasing Tariff 2 by 1.9 per cent 
 No increase to Tariff 3 
 No increase to the distance and time rates for journeys over six miles 

(Tariff 4) 

3.9 The TfL tariffs 1 and 2 equate approximately to Wirral tariffs 1 and 2, and TfL tariff 3 
equates approximately to Wirral tariffs 3 and 4. 

3.10 TfL tariff 4 relates to journeys beyond six miles.
 
3.11 The results of the TfL consultation have not yet been published.

3.12 The last increase of Hackney Carriage Fares in Wirral was in November 2018.  The 
effect of this was to increase the initial hiring charge on tariff 1 and reduce the initial 
hiring distance on tariffs 2, 3 and 4, and to reduce the running mile yardage on all 
tariffs.  This resulted in increases of between 7.1% and 37.5% on distances 
between 1 mile and 10 miles.

3.13 The current proposal submitted by Unite the Union is attached at Appendix 1 dated 
20 September 2019 and signed by the Union Branch Secretary on 16 October 
2019.

3.14 The proposal also includes an increase in the fouling charge from £35 to £50.

3.15 The current four tariffs are as follows:

Tariff 1 Standard Day Rate (6am to 10pm)

Tariff 2 Standard Night Rate (10pm to 6am)
Public and Bank Holiday Day Rate (inc Easter Sunday)

Tariff 3 Public and Bank Holiday Night Rate (inc Easter Sunday)

Tariff 4 Christmas and New Year Day and Night Rate

Christmas is defined as the period from 18.00 hours on Christmas Eve until 
06.00 hours on the day after Boxing Day. 
New Year is defined as the period from 18.00 hours on New Year’s Eve until 
06.00 hours on the day after New Year’s Day.

Page 49



4

3.16 A table showing the current Hackney Carriage Tariffs is set out in Appendix 2. 

3.17 A table comparing the current tariffs in Wirral with neighbouring local authorities is 
attached at Appendix 3.

3.18 A petition signed by 51 Hackney Carriage Drivers has been submitted to the 
Licensing Authority requesting no increase in the Hackney Carriage Tariffs. 

3.19 Should the Committee approve an amendment to the current tariffs, the proposal 
must be advertised for a period of fourteen days.  If no objections to the proposal 
are received, the revised tariffs will be reported to Cabinet for approval.  If 
objections are received, they will be reported back to this Committee for 
consideration.  

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The cost of the public advertisement will be recovered from licence fees.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 section 65(1) gives the 
power to set hackney carriage fares to the local authority as follows:

1 A District Council may fix the rates or fares within the district as well for time 
as distance, and all other charges in connection with the hire of a vehicle or 
with the arrangements for the hire of a vehicle; to be paid in respect of the 
hire of a hackney carriage by means of a table (hereafter in this section 
referred to as a ‘table of fares’) made or varied in accordance with the 
provisions of this section. 

2 When a District Council make or vary a table of fares they shall publish in at 
least one local newspaper circulating in the district a notice setting out the 
table of fares or the variation thereof and specifying the period, which shall 
not be less than fourteen days from the date of first publication of the notice, 
within which and the manner in which objections to the table of fares or
variation can be made.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS 

6.1 There may be an impact on resources in the Licensing Team as following any 
change in the Hackney Carriage Tariffs it is necessary to verify that the meters in 
the Hackney Carriages have been calibrated to take into account the changes and 
new fare tariff cards are issued to all Hackney Carriage Drivers.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The decision of whether to increase the Hackney Carriage Fares could have an 
impact on what members of the public reasonably expect to pay and upon whether 
drivers are provided with a sufficient incentive to provide a service when it is 
needed. 

Page 50



5

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The proposal must be advertised for a minimum period of fourteen days.  If no 
objections to the proposal are received, the revised tariffs will be reported to 
Cabinet for approval.  If objections are received, they will be reported back to this 
Committee for consideration.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?

Yes and impact review is attached - https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-
neighbourhoods/equality-impact- assessments/equality-impact-assessments-
2017/business

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 Hackney Carriage Vehicles contribute to CO2 emissions. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Margaret O’Donnell
Licensing Manager
telephone:  (0151) 691 8606
email:   margaretodonnell@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Proposal submitted by Unite the Union

Appendix 2 – A table showing the current Hackney Carriage Tariffs 
Appendix 3 – A table comparing the current tariffs in Wirral with neighbouring local 

Authorities

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Previous changes to fares and tariffs, 2019 proposals and fares for other modes of 
transport - Transport for London, July 2019

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Licensing Health and Safety and General Purposes 
Committee

27 January 2016

23 November 2016

25 January 2017

18 July 2018

18 September 2019

Page 51

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-%09assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2017/business
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-%09assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2017/business
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-%09assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2017/business
mailto:margaretodonnell@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix  2

Current Hackney Carriage Tariffs

Current rate

TARIFF 1

First 300 yards £3.20

Each subsequent 230 yards 20p

TARIFF 2

First 300 yards £3.60

Each subsequent 175 yards 20p

TARIFF 3

First 300 yards £3.80

Each subsequent 165 yards 20p

TARIFF 4

First 300 yards £6.00

Each subsequent 230 yards 40p

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix  3

TARIFF COMPARISON TABLE

Wirral Liverpool Sefton St Helens Halton
Ellesmere 
Port and 
Neston

Tariff 1 £6.00 £6.30 £5.10 £5.30 £5.20 £5.50

Tariff 2 £7.40

Tariff 3 £7.80
£7.00 £6.30 £7.00 £7.20 £6.902 miles

Tariff 4 £11.60 £8.40 £7.50 £8.10 £8.80 £11.00

Tariff 1 £10.60 £10.40 £9.90 £10.50 £10.00 £9.80

Tariff 2 £13.40

Tariff 3 £14.20
£13.00 £12.30 £14.20 £13.40 £12.305 miles

Tariff 4 £20.60 £15.60 £14.70 £15.50 £16.80 £19.60

Fouling charge £35.00 £40 inside, 
£10 outside £40.00 £25.00 £50.00 £25.00

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
13 NOVEMBER 2019

REPORT TITLE REAR LOADING WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE 
VEHICLES

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider whether to adopt a policy 
relating to the type of Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles to be licensed as Hackney Carriage 
or Private Hire Vehicles.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Committee considers the options provided within the report and determine 
whether to adopt a policy relating to the type of Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles to be 
licensed as Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicles.

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 On 26 April 2019 upon being asked to consider the licensing of rear loading 
wheelchair accessible vehicles as both Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Vehicles 
the Licensing Panel resolved that Officers be directed to present a report to the 
Licensing, Health and Safety and General Purposes Committee, in respect of a 
policy regarding the licensing of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Council does not adopt a policy and considers each application on its individual 
merits.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 It is currently a requirement that all vehicles to be licensed as Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles must be purpose built and built to accommodate passengers in 
wheelchairs. There is currently no specification regarding whether the wheelchair 
must be loaded from the side or rear of the vehicle.  All vehicles currently licensed 
as Hackney Carriage Vehicles load the wheelchair from the side of the vehicle.

3.2 There is currently no requirement for Private Hire Vehicles to be built to 
accommodate wheelchairs.  There are vehicles licensed as Private Hire Vehicles 
that can accommodate wheelchairs and that load the wheelchair from the rear, 
these vehicles are restricted to only undertake school contract work.

3.3 In November 2018 the Licensing Panel considered whether to license two specific 
types of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles, one to be licensed as a Private 
Hire Vehicle and the other as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle.  Both vehicles provided 
for the rear loading of wheelchairs via a ramp.  The Licensing Panel were advised 
that the vehicles proposed to be licensed undergo a process of conversion following 
manufacture in order to accommodate wheelchairs being loaded from the rear.

3.4 In considering the licensing of the vehicles evidence was requested relating to their 
safety following the conversion.  The consideration also raised concerns regarding 
the space currently provided on Hackney Carriage Stands to allow for the loading of 
wheelchairs from the rear, concerns regarding the loading of the vehicles on the 
road and the overall safety of a passenger travelling in a rear loading wheelchair 
accessible vehicle.  It was subsequently considered appropriate that a public 
consultation be undertaken in respect of the use of rear loading wheelchair 
accessible vehicles as Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles in advance of 
reporting to this committee regarding the adoption of a policy. 

3.5 Consultation on the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles using both 
ramps and tailgates was undertaken between 5 August 2019 and 13 September 
2019.  The consultation included an online questionnaire and all drivers were 
notified of the consultation in writing and how to access the online questionnaire.

Page 60



3.6 The following organisations were contacted directly by email and asked to respond 
to the consultation:

Happy Times Activities
Wirral Older People’s Parliament
Clare House
Wirral Hospice St Johns
AJ and Friends
Wired
Together All are Able
Age UK
Sensory Shack
Autism Together
Private Hire Operators
Members of the Taxis and Private Hire Trade Consultative Group

3.7 A summary of the responses received through the online questionnaire is attached 
at Appendix 1.

3.8 The comments received through the online questionnaire are attached at 
Appendix 2.

3.9 A table providing details of comments received directly by the Licensing Authority 
are shown in the table attached at Appendix 3.

3.10 A letter received from the Spinal Injuries Association is attached at Appendix 4.

3.11 A statement from the Council’s Senior Network Manager is attached at Appendix 5.

3.12 A statement from the Council’s Communities Equalities Officer is attached at
Appendix 6.

3.13 The views expressed by the respondents to the survey can be summarised as 
follows:

 The loading of passengers from the road gives rise to concern for the safety of 
both the passenger in the wheelchair and the driver.

 The moving of a wheelchair passenger on and off a kerb gives rise to concern 
regarding the safe handling of the passenger in the wheelchair.

 There is not sufficient space at Hackney Carriage Stands to allow for the safe 
loading of a passenger in a wheelchair into a rear loading vehicle.

 It is safer to keep wheelchair users on the pavement rather than place them and 
those assisting passengers into the road. 

Page 61



 The wheelchair user is placed directly in the impact zone of a rear loading 
vehicle should there be a rear end accident there would be no alternative exit 
route for the passenger.

 Loading in a side loading vehicle can be undertaken directly from the pavement 
rather than from the road, which was deemed safer for both the passenger and 
the driver

 If the vehicle operator is fully trained in the correct procedure in operating a 
tailgate lift, the safety of the wheelchair user and any other persons should not 
be of any concern.

 The approval of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles for the Private Hire 
Trade would help create a more inclusive transport infrastructure for all.

 The licensing of Private Hire Vehicles as wheelchair accessible vehicles could 
make accessibility greater and be more affordable.

 In narrow streets with no off-road parking available there are regularly cars 
parked on both side of the road preventing side loading vehicles from safely 
loading or unloading a passenger.

 The ramp on most Hackney Carriage Vehicles is only accessed from the near 
side which in one way streets can put the wheelchair user’s safety at risk.

 The position of some ranks in Wirral does not allow passengers to be loaded 
directly from the pavement at the rank.

 Rear loading vehicles are easier to access for those using mobility scooters.

3.14 In May 2014 the Law Commission carried out research into the taxi and private hire 
trade and published a report.  Whilst consideration of wheelchair accessible taxis 
was a small element of the report the report stated ‘…Many wheelchair accessible 
vehicles are rear loading and some passengers prefer that.  Others, however, 
prefer a side-loading vehicle.  From a safety point of view a rear loading vehicle can 
present problems because the passenger can only access the vehicle from the 
road.  This means that a longer ramp is required because the kerb cannot be used, 
which can present access problems.’ 

Page 62



3.15 It is evident that there is no consensus of opinion regarding the use of rear loading 
wheelchair accessible vehicles therefore the Committee will need to balance the 
different views when considering the following options.

Options

In relation to Hackney Carriage vehicles

Either:

i) Any vehicle to be licensed as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle must be a 
side loading wheelchair accessible vehicle; or

ii) Any vehicle to be licensed as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle may be a 
side loading wheelchair accessible vehicle or a rear loading 
wheelchair accessible vehicle.

In relation to Private Hire Vehicles

Either:

i) Any vehicle to be licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle that is wheelchair 
accessible must be a side loading wheelchair accessible vehicle; or

ii) Any vehicle to be licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle that is wheelchair 
accessible may be a side loading wheelchair accessible vehicle or a 
rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicle; or

iii) Any vehicle to be licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle that is wheelchair 
accessible and is a rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicle may 
only be used to undertake school contract work.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are none arising directly out of this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides that a district 
Council may require any Hackney Carriage licensed by them to be of such design 
or appearance or bear such distinguishable marks as shall clearly identify it as a 
Hackney Carriage.  It also provides that in respect of Private Hire Vehicles a District 
Council shall not grant a licence unless they are satisfied that the vehicle is suitable 
in type, size and design for use as a Private Hire Vehicle.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are none arising directly out of this report.

Page 63



7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Public consultation and the views of Council officers have identified both positive 
and negative factors relating to the licensing of rear loading wheelchair accessible 
vehicles. The Committee, therefore, have to balance the different views and form a 
conclusion which will then direct whether to have a policy relating to the licensing of 
rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 A public consultation has taken place as well as consultation with the Council’s 
Communities Equalities Officer and the Council’s Network Manager.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?

Yes and the impact review is attached –

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversity-
cohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010-0

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report may have an 
impact on emissions of CO2 as it may influence the type of vehicles that are 
selected to be licensed as Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Margaret O’Donnell
(Licensing Manager)
telephone:  (0151 691 8606)
email:   licensing@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Summary of the responses received through the online questionnaire
Appendix 2 – Comments received through the online questionnaire
Appendix 3 – Comments received directly by the Licensing Authority
Appendix 4 – Letter received from the Spinal Injuries Association
Appendix 5 – Statement from the Council’s Senior Network Manager
Appendix 6 – Statement from the Council’s Communities Equalities Officer

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Licensing Panel 9 November 2018
26 April 2019
21 June 2019

Page 64

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversity-cohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010-0
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversity-cohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010-0
mailto:licensing@wirral.gov.uk


Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Appendix 2

Rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicle survey - Comments

Q1 - Do you consider the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles as 
Private Hire Vehicles could affect the safety of a wheelchair user or other road 
users at the time they are accessing the vehicle via a ramp?

I think it is unsafe to load a wheelchair in a taxi off the road and will cause other road 
users problems.and is very unsafe for the person in a wheelchair 
9/13/2019 3:51 PM 

When loading the wheelchair you are on the road,so this would be dangerous to the 
driver and passenger. 
9/13/2019 8:59 AM 

The length of the vehicle with ramp out is very unlikely to find a space large enough 
to park adjacent to a pavement therefore it will be double parked increasing risk to 
wheelchair user and driver. In narrow side roads this will also cause congestion and 
possibly lead to confrontation 
9/12/2019 4:05 PM 

I have worked as a Hackney carriage driver for over 25 years and over that time 
witnessed many "rear end" accidents and unfortunately been on the receiving end of 
a few myself. Being at the rear of the vehicle increases the vulnerability of the driver 
and passengers. The fact that you would need to stand in the road to load and 
unload wheelchair bound passengers makes me very uncomfortable. Also should 
the vehicle be involved in an accident, the integrity of the vehicle may be 
compromised such as the third party vehicle being stuck or wedged to the rear of the 
vehicle or the boot unable to open. This would affect the exit of the wheelchair user 
detrimentally. Current licenced Hackney carriages load wheelchairs from the side 
door which preferably is via a raised kerb, keeping driver and passengers on the 
pavement. Another factor to consider is loading at taxi ranks when another cab is 
waiting immediately behind the vehicle, thus no room for the ramp. In conclusion I 
consider these vehicles not suitable for the taxi trade on the grounds of safety and 
practicality and encourage Wirral Borough Council not to license them as Hackney 
carries or private hire vehicles. 
9/12/2019 10:02 AM 

The amount of space required. 
9/11/2019 7:03 PM 

As a current licenced hackney driver I cannot see how the rear loading ramp would 
improve the service to a disabled service user at all. There is only as far as I can see 
negative effects from the use of such a system when the current system used in 
current licenced vehicles is readily available, safe and adequate. There are and will 
be safely implications in the use of this rear loading in the fact that there is limited 
rank space already and not enough space for a rear loader to have to take two 
spaces.. therefore the rear loader would have to leave the rank then load on the 
public highway on most ranks. There is little or no scope to drop wheelchairs down 

Page 73



high kerbs on built up residential areas where there are townhouses with no 
driveways or gaps between parked cars in the evening especially in Wallasey.. in 
certain areas this would mean a rushed job to load or unload a user from a 
potentially busy road with no way to rejoin the footpath.. the roads on the Wirral are 
particularly at the moment in disrepair. It is not practical or safe to use the road as a 
footway especially to transport users. This is a liability nightmare and potential 
hazard to consider forcing licenced drivers to use the roadway to load passengers 
and expect them to risk further injury whilst mounting and dismounting high kerbs. 
9/10/2019 4:03 PM 

To me they are a health and safety risk not only to the wheelchair user but also the 
driver. It would take some time to correctly load and secure the passenger, and 
during this time the ramp would be out into the road causing an obstruction to other 
road users. 
9/8/2019 6:45 PM 

Loading from the road would inconvenience other road uses and compromises the 
safety of the wheelchair passenger and the driver loading the passenger. 
9/8/2019 2:08 PM 

If I’m not mistaken a lady was involved in a terrible accident in Wallasey when she 
was getting in to a private hire vehicle which takes only seconds. So the length of 
time to load a wheelchair in the road is not a safe way to load a wheelchair 
passenger or the drivers safety . There’s not always safe places to load passengers 
9/7/2019 3:55 PM 

More room, quicker to load and unload more options for the taxi trade 
8/28/2019 10:53 PM 

Page 74



Q2 - Do you consider the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles as 
Private Hire Vehicles could affect the safety of a wheelchair user or other road 
users at the time they are accessing the vehicle via a tailgate lift assist 
system?

Unsafe and impractical to load in the road. 
9/13/2019 10:40 PM 

It will be unsafe for the wheelchair users and other traffic and when using a ramp or 
lift it will be time consuming which will cause other road users to be fed up and the 
wheelchair user stress I would say you would need 3 meters to load a wheelchair 
which health and safety would be at risk 
9/13/2019 3:51 PM 

Again you are operating the use of the exit (rear loading) in the road,and could also 
be an obstruction to traffic and in turn be a potential cause of an accident. 
9/13/2019 8:59 AM 

Yes for same reason as above 
9/12/2019 4:05 PM 

Mainly for the same reasons as my first response. 
9/12/2019 10:02 AM 

The opposite of question 1 
9/11/2019 7:03 PM 

The highway is not a safe place to unload or load users full stop.. I cannot see why 
this is even being considered. The risks posed from other drivers and the 
unmaintained roads are a hazard to cars never mind untrained and uninsured drivers 
operating on the highway.. there will be legal insurance issues that prevent the 
insured driver wondering about the dangerous highway. 
9/10/2019 4:03 PM 

As in question one. 
9/8/2019 6:45 PM 

I’ve seen the the vehicle in question and it takes to long. Not a bad idea but I don’t 
think it’s going to be safe 
9/7/2019 3:55 PM 

No as it is perfectly safe to load and unload passengers from the rear as many 
disabled vehicles are I.e disability cars, school buses and private ambulances. 
8/28/2019 10:53 PM 

Page 75



Q3 - Do you consider the length and height of a ramp used to access a rear 
loading wheelchair accessible vehicle to be a relevant factor for the Licensing 
Authority to consider when determining whether to license such vehicles?

Impractical and unsafe in real life scenario. 
9/13/2019 10:40 PM 

If this vehicle is on the rank the cab behind and the cab behind and so on would all 
have to move to acomadate the ramp of the said vehicle because of rear loading ? 
9/13/2019 8:59 AM 

It’s not the length that’s a real problem although a factor it’s rear loading that is the 
biggest concern 
9/12/2019 4:05 PM 

The height of the ramp is of no real concern, however the length would compromise 
the ability to load in many instances such as taxi ranks or in the road. Even at 
hospitals during most hours keeping enough space behind the vehicle to safely load 
or unload would be difficult. The length required is not only the ramp but also the 
wheelchair and the driver to push from behind, this being a few meters in length. 
9/12/2019 10:02 AM 

The shorter the ramp the steeper it will be making it harder to push the wheelchair 
user; a longer ramp would need more space to operate. 
9/11/2019 7:03 PM 

As above the ramp aswell as the vehicle is too long to park on ranks or some streets. 
The Wirral is a highly condensed residential area with limited parking in most areas. 
As a driver we would be lucky to find one space to unload never mind the two 
needed especially together. This is not needed on the current system of side loading. 
9/10/2019 4:03 PM 

On either a taxi rank or on the roadside there would likely be problem's due to rear 
loading ramps or tailgates. there are very few side roads within the borough that 
have the room to load or off load a wheelchair user without a risk to them and the 
driver 
9/8/2019 6:45 PM 

I don't know the dimensions of the ramp, but it looks to be very long. 
9/8/2019 2:08 PM 

The ramp on the said vehicle if I’m not mistaken is to long 
9/7/2019 3:55 PM 

The advantage of rear loading is the ramp can be less steep compared to a side 
loader. Loading and unloading time is reduce, also less strain on the drivers. 
8/28/2019 10:53 PM 

Page 76



Q4 - Do you consider the length and height of a tailgate lift assist system used 
to access a rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicle to be a relevant factor 
for the Licensing Authority to consider when determining whether to license 
such vehicles?

As above 
9/13/2019 3:51 PM 

In order to accommodate this vehicle on the Wirral every single rank would have to 
double in length due to the size of the ramp,and thats if you don't have anybody else 
parked illegally on the rank cars,private hire or vans! 
9/13/2019 8:59 AM 

As above 
9/12/2019 4:05 PM 

Mainly for reasons of all rear access as mentioned previously. 
9/12/2019 10:02 AM 

It solves the problem highlighted above 
9/11/2019 7:03 PM 

There could be potential issues in the fact that there is without doubt a frequency in 
that the number of Rtc involving Wirral hackney and ph drivers and more than likely 
nationally that if such a driver was to involved in a rtc then in the majority that vehicle 
would of in most circumstances been hit in the rear... as professional drivers who 
spend several hours on the road a day we become exposed to more than the 
average amount of rtc in which mostly are rear ended collision. This is not an 
argument to question the integrity of the vehicle the rear loader is installed but in the 
fact that in the case of being rear ended as so to speak there is no other exit for the 
user where as there is another side door for access on side loader. Again there is 
unquestionable safety issues to use the rear loader on Wirral roads. 
9/10/2019 4:03 PM 

Yes I do but that is up to you guys to check length and height, please Don’t just think 
of the customer please also consider the drivers safety. Putting someone in the cab 
from the safety of the kerb is a lot better than from the rear 
9/7/2019 3:55 PM 

No. Most rear loading vehicles have a large rear opening. 
8/28/2019 10:53 PM 

Page 77



Q5 - Please use the space below for any other points or information that you 
would like the Licensing Authority to consider when determining if rear 
loading wheelchair accessible vehicles should be licensed as Private Hire 
Vehicles. Please give reasons for your answer and if possible identify the key 
advantages or disadvantages as you see them:

The safety of loading wheelchair an user in road is a concern. And also a worry is 
the issue of wheel chair user being trapped or worse in back as a result as the most 
common rta place of impact the rear end . 
9/13/2019 10:40 PM 

The use of existing rear loading vehicles such as ambulances which have a lift 
system are used in accordance of their loading/unloading in hospitals which they 
reverse into an allocated bay.They never unload in the busy hospital car park.Even 
your large school minibuses reverse in a line side by side in allocated bays in 
Foxfield school Woodchurch.There for I deem these vehicles un suitable and not for 
purpose as a taxi on the Wirral. 
9/13/2019 8:59 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:05 PM 

It is my opinion that it is dangerous to load a wheelchair from the rear of a vehicle as 
the wheelchair user is in the road. I don't see a problem with the traditional way of 
side access on the safety of the kerbside.Also loading from the rear from the road 
adds the problem of the wheelchair from contamination of oil etc. 
9/12/2019 10:52 PM 

Firstly I have to point out I am a cab driver, I don’t think there is a need for this 
vehicle there are around 280 cabs on the Wirral plus p/h vehicles that are capable of 
carrying wheelchair users safely, both rear facing and forward facing. I am not aware 
of any accidents whilst loading wheelchair passengers to date so why take an 
unnecessary risk As a side issue why is Shaun Marnel being allowed so many 
chances to bring this forward I thought the committee/ panel decisions where final , 
this I believe is the 3rd time and a public consultation. I hope this treatment will be 
afforded to drivers who happen to appear in front of the committee/ panel. Kind 
regards Chris Carroll 
9/12/2019 4:05 PM 

Key points: 1, Safety for driver and passengers would be severely compromised 
when loading and unloading. 2, Safety for wheelchair users compromised following a 
collision. 3, Space required for ramp deployment not practical on taxi ranks. 4, Space 
required for ramp deployment not practical in busy locations such as hospitals etc. 

Page 78



Consideration must also be taken when loading and unloading wheelchairs at night 
or in poor light situations. The driver and wheelchair may at times stand in such a 
position that blocks the rears lights from the view of other road users, this itself being 
another major safety factor. 
9/12/2019 10:02 AM 

As a member of the existing fleet of Wirral based hackney carriages. I feel it it 
important that the local authority safeguard the service user, by implementing 
restrictions on rear loading vehicles based on the evidence above. This is evidence 
provided from my experience on the job. The local authority would also be working in 
turn to safeguard the drivers from potential harm on the carriageway and the general 
public in turn. It is imperative that the local authority work alongside licensed drivers 
to ensure the safety of the drivers and public and take advise and evidence to further 
increase service and safety alike. I would also like to mention again the potential of 
insurance companies raising premiums across the board to compensate for their 
potential losses should the ever be involved in a liability issue whilst a driver is 
conducting loading on the highway. This is unfair for drivers who do not operate the 
service but the insurer base their pricing strategy on risk of the local area.. the Wirral 
is already one of the highest risk areas. 
9/10/2019 4:03 PM 

Firstly, the rear loading is not viable on the ranks and streets of the Wirral(maybe 
Liscard at push)   Secondly, according to our regulations, the luggage must be 
separate from the area that passengers are conveyed in(or words to that effect) so 
how and where will the luggage/shopping go?  As the wheelchair user will have a 
helper/family member/spouse travelling with them. And this is more prevalent if going 
on holiday to Airport/Port/Train Station or Bus station.    And Lastly, and more 
importantly Having a wheelchair in the rear of the vehicle is if there was a rear end 
shunt in an accident then there would be NO WAY of getting the less abled 
passenger out of the vehicle.  These vehicles for the last 50 years have crumple 
zones to absorb the kinetic energy released in a crash to protect passengers. Now i 
believe that Mr Marnell has strengthened the area incase of this happening, and if 
this is the case then he has made the vehicle DANGEROUS as the chassis has 
been developed and designed out of the factory to crumple the way it does. 
9/9/2019 10:51 AM 

I am sure the vehicle has been crash tested but if something hit the rear of the 
vehicle above the bumper / slam panel area then the wheelchair passenger would 
get the full impact. Where as in all other currently licensed vehicles there is at least a 
row of seats as well as the tailgate to protect any passengers. 
9/8/2019 2:08 PM 

The above response is from a driver with 35 years experience. The response above 
is without prejudice to anybody. Just about safety . Peace and love 
9/7/2019 3:55 PM 

Having a rear loading veichle is great for the trade and gives customers who are in 
wheelchairs to be able to travel facing forward. 
8/28/2019 10:53 PM 

Page 79



Q6 - Do you consider the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles as 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles could affect the safety of a wheelchair user or other 
road users at the time they are accessing the vehicle via a ramp?

They are being loaded in sometimes busy roads or ranks very dangerous for wheel 
chair user and also driver. 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

Same reasons that p/h there is not enough room on a tank to use them 
9/13/2019 3:53 PM 

While the driver is sorting the ramp out he eould have his back to the traffic. 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

For the same reason as with p/h plus the ranks are not able to rear load 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Reasons as previous. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

Similar to the private hire with the added problem of loading from a rank. Take 
Milton's rank for example, that is situated outside the old Miltons pub. Unless the 
council redevelops/revamps the access for wheelchair users, the rear loading 
vehicle(RLV) is a non-starter. For a RLV to load, the taxis on the rank would have to 
reverse onto a mini roundabout that controls a car park, a bus lane and access to the 
market. The RLV cannot move forward because of another mini roundabout and 
immediately after that is a pedestrian crossing. Pulling onto the road would cause 
serious congestion. 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

As a current licenced hackney driver I cannot see how the rear loading ramp would 
improve the service to a disabled service user at all. There is only as far as I can see 
negative effects from the use of such a system when the current system used in 
current licenced vehicles is readily available, safe and adequate. There are and will 
be safely implications in the use of this rear loading in the fact that there is limited 
rank space already and not enough space for a rear loader to have to take two 
spaces.. therefore the rear loader would have to leave the rank then load on the 
public highway on most ranks. There is little or no scope to drop wheelchairs down 
high kerbs on built up residential areas where there are townhouses with no 
driveways or gaps between parked cars in the evening especially in Wallasey.. in 

Page 80



certain areas this would mean a rushed job to load or unload a user from a 
potentially busy road with no way to rejoin the footpath.. the roads on the Wirral are 
particularly at the moment in disrepair. It is not practical or safe to use the road as a 
footway especially to transport users. This is a liability nightmare and potential 
hazard to consider forcing licenced drivers to use the roadway to load passengers 
and expect them to risk further injury whilst mounting and dismounting high kerbs. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

same reasons given for private hire vehicle. 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

As said on previous page 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 81



Q7 - Do you consider the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles as 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles could affect the safety of a wheelchair user or other 
road users at the time they are accessing the vehicle via a tailgate lift assist 
system?

They are still accessing vehicle from the rear in road its unsafe. 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

Again all the procedure of loading into this taxi the driver and the passanger is at the 
mercy of how vigalant the other road users are. 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

Same answers as for P/h. Not practical 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Reasons as previous. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

Not as much as a ramp but the problems highlighted above are still a concern. 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

The highway is not a safe place to unload or load users full stop.. I cannot see why 
this is even being considered. The risks posed from other drivers and the 
unmaintained roads are a hazard to cars never mind untrained and uninsured drivers 
operating on the highway.. there will be legal insurance issues that prevent the 
insured driver wondering about the dangerous highway. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

same as ph vehicle 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

Previous page 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 82



Q8 - Do you consider the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles as 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles could affect the safety of a wheelchair user or other 
road users at the time they are accessing the vehicle via a ramp on a taxi 
rank?

Other road users will be affected when hackney have to reverse to make space for 
these ramps on busy ranks . Bot like shown on pictures when they were quiet. 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

This would cause confusion and disrupt the flow of traffic which in turn is a potential 
risk to both driver and passenger. 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

Same reason as answer for P/H 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Reasons as previously mentioned. The Hackney carriage would need to pull off the 
rank in order to gain enough space for the use of the rear loading ramp. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

As highlighted in the previous answer, taxi would have to reverse at least 2 taxi 
lengths to give the lead cab room to load. Given that ranks are predominately 
situated in where both traffic and footfall are heavy this increases the possibility of 
collisions. 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

As above the ramp aswell as the vehicle is too long to park on ranks or some streets. 
The Wirral is a highly condensed residential area with limited parking in most areas. 
As a driver we would be lucky to find one space to unload never mind the two 
needed especially together. This is not needed on the current system of side loading. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

same as ph vehicle 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

Previous page 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 83



Q9 - Do you consider the use of rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicles as 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles could affect the safety of a wheelchair user or other 
road users at the time they are accessing the vehicle via a tailgate lift assist 
system on a taxi rank?

Same still in road from rear also must be unloaded in road. Which could also be very 
busy making rear impact a possibility.ssme 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

The ramp is to long for the rank. 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

As answer for P/H 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Reasons previously mentioned. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

It would be preferable to ramps. 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

Not enough rank space. Inconvenient and unsafe to ask a row of ranked drivers to 
reverse in sink the full length of the rank to accommodate enough space for the rear 
loader. The vehicle would move from the rank to load on the road. Where it is again 
unsafe. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

same as ph vehicle 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

Previous page 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 84



Q10 - Do you consider the length and height of a ramp used to access a rear 
loading wheelchair accessible vehicle to be a relevant factor for the Licensing 
Authority to consider when determining whether to license such vehicles?

Space on ranks 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

How do you release the ramp on the rank if the taxi behind is parked two feet from 
you? 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

See answers for same question it doesn’t matter whether it’s p/h or hac the dangers 
are the same 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Reasons previously mentioned. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

Ramps are a trade off; shorter means that less space is needed, but increases the 
problems of pushing a wheelchair user into the RLV, a longer ramp means more 
space is needed. 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

As above the ramp aswell as the vehicle is too long to park on ranks or some streets. 
The Wirral is a highly condensed residential area with limited parking in most areas. 
As a driver we would be lucky to find one space to unload never mind the two 
needed especially together. This is not needed on the current system of side loading. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

same as ph vehicle 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

Previous page 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 85



Q11 - Do you consider the length and height of a tailgate lift assist system 
used to access a rear loading wheelchair accessible vehicle to be a relevant 
factor for the Licensing Authority to consider when determining whether to 
license such vehicles?

Space on ranks 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

Just the fact that you are even considering a rear loading vehicle is enough. 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

As answer fo P/H 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Reasons previously mentioned. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

Tailgate lift, still has disadvantages because taxis would still have to reverse for the 
wheelchair user to access the vehicle, but only half a taxi length. 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

There could be potential issues in the fact that there is without doubt a frequency in 
that the number of Rtc involving Wirral hackney and ph drivers and more than likely 
nationally that if such a driver was to involved in a rtc then in the majority that vehicle 
would of in most circumstances been hit in the rear... as professional drivers who 
spend several hours on the road a day we become exposed to more than the 
average amount of rtc in which mostly are rear ended collision. This is not an 
argument to question the integrity of the vehicle the rear loader is installed but in the 
fact that in the case of being rear ended as so to speak there is no other exit for the 
user where as there is another side door for access on side loader. Again there is 
unquestionable safety issues to use the rear loader on Wirral roads. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

same as ph vehicle 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

Previous page 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 86



Q12 - Please use the space below for any other points or information that you 
would like the Licensing Authority to consider when determining if rear 
loading wheelchair accessible vehicles should be licensed as Hackney 
Carriage Vehicles. Please give reasons for your answer and if possible identify 
the key advantages or disadvantages as you see them:

Just unsafe in so many ways I'm surprised at WBC for even considering this option. I 
honestly think people are being bribed for this to take place. 
9/13/2019 10:49 PM 

The health and safety issue should be enough to tell you this vehicle is not a taxi 
friendly vehicle.So don't passit as one.The implications that would cause the council 
if there was an accident would be harendas. 
9/13/2019 9:36 AM 

I believe there could be a serious health and safety issue loading in the road. The 
wheelchair user is in line of traffic it's not rocket science,what is the problem with the 
traditional method of accessing the vehicle from the curbside the ramp is not to steep 
on the curbside where it would be to acute at the rear as there is no curb.Also there 
is also the problem of contamination ie. oil etc.on the wheels of the wheelchair from 
the road.I really can't believe this is being debated. 
9/12/2019 11:06 PM 

Please see comments at bottom of P/H 
9/12/2019 4:14 PM 

Key points and reasons previously mentioned. 
9/12/2019 10:09 AM 

As stated earlier, taxi ranks are situated on busy roads and that should be a factor in 
the council's decision. In addition the council have spent a considerable amount of 
money adapting ranks for wheelchair users to load into taxis from the side; for 
example raised kerbs. This works against the wheelchair user as they would have to 
negotiate 5"/6" kerbs to access a RLV 
9/11/2019 7:28 PM 

As a member of the existing fleet of Wirral based hackney carriages. I feel it it 
important that the local authority safeguard the service user, by implementing 
restrictions on rear loading vehicles based on the evidence above. This is evidence 
provided from my experience on the job. The local authority would also be working in 
turn to safeguard the drivers from potential harm on the carriageway and the general 
public in turn. It is imperative that the local authority work alongside licensed drivers 
to ensure the safety of the drivers and public and take advise and evidence to further 
increase service and safety alike. I would also like to mention again the potential of 
insurance companies raising premiums across the board to compensate for their 
potential losses should the ever be involved in a liability issue whilst a driver is 
conducting loading on the highway. This is unfair for drivers who do not operate the 

Page 87



service but the insurer base their pricing strategy on risk of the local area.. the Wirral 
is already one of the highest risk areas. 
9/10/2019 4:04 PM 

Firstly, the rear loading is not viable on the ranks and streets of the Wirral(maybe 
Liscard at push)   Secondly, according to our regulations, the luggage must be 
separate from the area that passengers are conveyed in(or words to that effect) so 
how and where will the luggage/shopping go?  As the wheelchair user will have a 
helper/family member/spouse travelling with them. And this is more prevalent if going 
on holiday to Airport/Port/Train Station or Bus station.    And Lastly, and more 
importantly Having a wheelchair in the rear of the vehicle is if there was a rear end 
shunt in an accident then there would be NO WAY of getting the less abled 
passenger out of the vehicle.  These vehicles for the last 50 years have crumple 
zones to absorb the kinetic energy released in a crash to protect passengers. Now i 
believe that Mr Marnell has strengthened the area incase of this happening, and if 
this is the case then he has made the vehicle DANGEROUS as the chassis has 
been developed and designed out of the factory to crumple the way it does. 
9/9/2019 10:52 AM 

same as ph vehicle 
9/8/2019 2:14 PM 

Already stated 
9/7/2019 3:57 PM 

Page 88



Appendix 3
Comments received directly by the Licensing Authority

Respondent Summary of comments

Hackney Driver Accident waiting to happen.
Lack of space on ranks.

Hackney Driver Not viable on the ranks and streets in Wirral
Where would luggage/shopping go?
Wheelchair users unable exit vehicle if there was an 
accident at the rear end of the vehicle
Vehicle unsafe as it has been modified since it left 
factory.

Hackney Driver / Union Vehicle unsuitable for taxi work as customer would 
be taken onto road to unload them which would 
make it dangerous for customer and driver.

Private Hire Operator If the vehicle operator is fully trained in the correct 
procedure in operating a tailgate lift, the safety of the 
wheelchair user and any other persons should not be 
of any concern
The approval of rear loading wheelchair accessible 
vehicles for the Private Hire Trade would help create 
a more inclusive transport infrastructure for all
The licensing of Private Hire Vehicles as wheelchair 
accessible vehicles could make accessibility greater 
and be more affordable
In narrow streets with no off-road parking available 
there are regularly cars parked on both side of the 
road preventing side loading vehicles from safely 
loading or unloading a passenger
The ramp on most Hackney Carriage Vehicles is 
only accessed from the near side which in one way 
streets can put the wheelchair user’s safety at risk

The position of some ranks in Wirral does not allow 
passengers to be loaded directly from the pavement 
at the rank
 Rear loading vehicles are easier to access for those 
using mobility scooters

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91



Page 92



Appendix 5

REAR LOADING WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE VEHICLES
NETWORK MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The Network Management team have been asked to comment on proposals to licence a 
Hackney Carriage Vehicle that will load wheelchairs from the rear of the vehicle. 
Consideration has been given to the operation, safety, functionally and deliverability of such 
a proposal.

Officers have examined the proposal and consider that the safety of passengers could be 
exacerbated. In order for a wheelchair passenger to enter a rear-loading vehicle, it is 
necessary for them to be moved into the road either facing, or with their back to, oncoming 
traffic. This also requires the wheelchair user to be manoeuvred down a kerb. 

Some hackney carriage stands are not conducive to rear loading vehicles as the passengers 
safety may be put at risk by being placed in the road prior to loading. There could also be 
visibility problems with other drivers not seeing the wheelchair user hidden behind the taxi.

There is also a practical issue for the taxi drivers in ensuring that there is sufficient space 
behind the taxi whenever they arrive at their destination so the wheelchair user can safely 
exit the vehicle.

Similar concerns apply to private hire vehicles in that where there are no dropped/lowered 
kerbs it could be difficult or uncomfortable to move a wheelchair bound passenger from the 
kerb onto the road. Loading in the road may put passengers and drivers at greater risk from 
other road users.

There is unlikely to be any additional space on most existing ranks to accommodate rear 
loading vehicles and they could require expensive redesign of the majority of ranks as 
dropped kerbs could be needed and ranks may need to be extended in length. To 
understand the full impact this would have on existing hackney carriage stands across the 
borough it is recommended that a detailed assessment is undertaken to determine the 
suitability of the stands and identify whether any engineering measures would be required to 
accommodate such vehicles.  This would have a significant implication on staff resources 
within the Network Management team and would therefore have to be prioritised in line with 
other committed programmes of work. 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



The Licensing of rear loading vehicles as Hackney Carriage and/or Private hire 
vehicles 

I have been asked to comment on whether the Council should consider granting 
licence applications for rear loading vehicles that would become part of the Hackney 
Carriage or PVH fleet.

Guidance from Dept for Transport and Local Govt Association suggests that it is a 
matter for individual authorities as to whether to grant licences to rear loading 
vehicles and that this could increase the accessibility of the fleet, especially for those 
who use wheelchairs that are larger or have different dimensions to that of a “ 
reference wheelchair”

We also need to take the views of organisations such as the Spinal Injury 
Association who have expressed concern around the licensing of such vehicles as 
safety issues around access and egress have been raised.

In this particular case, the vehicles that have been put forward for licensing 
consideration are modified vehicles and as such the Council are unable, at this time 
to examine any certificates or paperwork that would support that the vehicles are in a 
safe working order for us to be 100% confident of safety going forward.

Should such information be available in the future which would give such 
assurances, it may be a more straightforward decision for the Council to make.

Mark Edgar

Communities Equalities Officer 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	Minutes

	3 MINUTES OF THE LICENSING PANEL
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 26/04/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 06/06/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 21/06/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 27/06/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 19/07/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 23/08/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 13/09/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 18/10/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes


	4 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES
	HCV Tariff Appendix 1
	HCV Tariff Appendix  2
	HCV Tariff Appendix  3

	5 REAR LOADING WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE VEHICLES
	RLWAV Appendix 1
	RLWAV Appendix 2
	RLWAV Appendix 3
	RLWAV Appendix 4
	RLWAV Appendix 5
	RLWAV Appendix 6


